Minutes of the Meeting of Milton Parish Council held on Monday 07 September 09 at 7.30pm in the Bowls Pavilion

Present: RH Chapman (chair) PS Badley JE Coston GA Covell R Day M Ellwood RJ Farrington B Jefferson

IF May HM Smith RT Summerfield RLE Waters

Councillor M Williamson PCSO C Whiteman and 13 members of the public

The clerk and assistant clerk

1 Apologies for absence - AJ Campbell TA Drummond SC Humphreys.

2 Declarations of Interest – personal and/or prejudicial

HMS – planning - personal – member of SCDC planning committee.

IFM - land update personal - chairman of colts football club.

3 Minutes - the minutes of the meeting of 27 July 2009 were approved and signed as a true record.

4 Public Participation

<u>Crime update</u> – large fire in field near railway on Tuesday 28 July. CSLT own the adjacent land with the open access (next to the railway) and rent it to a farmer from Waterbeach. The Police have not been able to identify who or what caused the fire. Camping equipment has been found.

PCSO Whiteman has discussed the Police Action Plan with PSB and JEC.

Noted that there had been minor vandalism and anti-social behaviour recently on Coles Road recreation ground. The police had checked that youngsters' motor bikes were within the law.

<u>Parking problems</u> along entrance road to Country Park. G Chamberlain, Cecil Instruments and M Woolhouse, CSLT reported on the problems caused to commercial and emergency vehicles by indiscriminate parking on this road. The majority of these vehicles were using the Country Park. It was noted that cars also parked at Tesco and along the road in front of Cecil Instruments.

It was AGREED

to support the installation of double yellow lines on the road towards the entrance of the Country Park and along the road in front of Cecil Instruments; to seek advice from Cambridgeshire County Council and to bring ideas to the October meeting. Action: the clerk

In addition the clerk would ask the County Council about the provision of lorry parks along the A14.

<u>Proposed Milton to Impington Cycle route</u> – members of the public attended to give their views about the proposed cycle route. It was agreed therefore to bring item 8 forward.

Issues raised:

- Consultation happened at such short notice and poorly organised.
- A cycleway between Milton and Impington in principle was a good idea but NOT at the expense of the loss of the bus to Impington Village College.
- The proposals were very sketchy.
- The Park & Ride site and the HWRC were hazards for cyclists.
- The A10 footbridge was not suitable for use by cyclists.
- Concerns about younger children cycling along this stretch in all weathers and having to carry the large rucksacks on their backs that secondary school children seem to need.
- It would be difficult to build a safe cycleway near St Andrew's church Impington.
- More parents would take their children to IVC by car thus increasing traffic at peak times and having an environmental and economic impact.
- One resident was happy to support a free bus but not to the detriment of a cycleway.

Councillor MW explained the County Council decision making process and subsequent appeals procedure if the provision of a free school bus were to be withdrawn. He would support strongly any appeal.

8 Milton to Impington cycle route - to consider response (PC14/7-09)

JEC explained that the school bus to Impington Village College was only provided in 1992 after a long battle with the County Council and a special hearing agreed that the route was proved to be unsafe. MPC had also opposed a proposal for building a cycle path in 1997 because the County had stated that 'with a properly constructed footpath and cycleway it would be difficult to understand how there could be any safety grounds for the provision of transport.'

It was AGREED

to send a letter immediately as an initial response to the consultation with a view to consider sending a back-up letter with more cogent arguments and to set up an 'ad hoc' group to investigate the way forward and how to deal with the issues. *Action: the clerk*

Noted that the Winship Road junction improvements had already been agreed by Council.

The chairman thanked the public for attending.

5 Request for funds towards archaeology

WDB reported on two archaeological digs on land adjacent Fen Road. He gave Council a copy of a report published in March 2009: "Report of Test Pit Excavation at Long Meadow and Hill Close Fen Road."

It was **AGREED**

to pay £80 towards the publishing costs of the report.

Two more reports would cost £170.

13 County Councillor's report (brought forward)

<u>Double yellow lines</u> (PC4/9-09 above) – Grenville Chamberlain had indicated to MW that Cecil Instruments might contribute towards the cost of implementing double yellow lines (c £1,000 - £1,500).

<u>Mere Way</u> – improvements to the surface north of Butt Lane and near the southern entrance were planned. (See correspondence below).

Archives (FS9/7-09) – storage space at Shire Hall present was limited.

<u>Community Engagement Strategy</u> – the County Council were keen to involve Parish Councils in decision-making. MW was happy to discuss this with Council. Consultation to end on 24 November. Agenda item in October.

A14 bridge (PC14/7-09) – CCTV cameras were in place. MW did not know who was managing the system.

A10 bridge (see item 8 above) – major cost of raising parapets would be the closure of the A10 while works take place. Noted that Mike Davies of Cycle Cambridge Team would attend the cycling consultation on Wednesday 9 September.

6 Clerk's/Chairman's report

<u>Training</u> (PC5/7-09) – an encouraging response: 30+ councillors and clerks from Histon and Impington, Horningsea, Landbeach, Milton and Waterbeach hoped to attend.

Village Tour – (PC4/7-09) – Monday 21 September at 6pm. Meet at the office.

Procedures: (PC5/7-09) - for the "Policies and Procedures" ad hoc committee to consider:

- <u>Voting Procedures</u> It is not necessary to record the majority by which a decision is made unless a
 member requires the voting to be recorded.
- Resolutions a seconder is not required by any rule of law (or by either Houses of Parliament). Our Standing Order 26: "A resolution or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed and seconded."

Highways issues: the clerk met Keith Faunch on 23 July to discuss the following:

- Blocked drains: 1 and 2 Fen Road, Coles Road by telephone box
 If the water has cleared within 24 hours he will not jet out the drains.
- Verge opposite Tesco: (PC5/7-09) we hope to install bunds in September. He will put in the bollards. [Note: bollards have been installed].
- 3 A10 Bridge: (PC4/7-09) Cycle barrier he will consider putting in a barrier similar to the one in the Butt Lane / Froment Way path.
 - [Note: Mike Davies Cycling Cambridge Team is dealing with this].
- 4 Path by Tesco: (PC5/7-09) first we should consider asking for double yellow lines to allay the resident's concerns about parked cars obstructing the view and possibly being a cause of accidents.
 - Steps may need some sort of barrier at the bottom and possibly railings Health & Safety issue but as it is on private land this may not be the case.
 - Diagonal path from near James Carlton Close OK. It would need to be able to cater for disabled users.
 - The simplest solution ask Tesco to block off the access.
 - Response from residents: the path would be a good idea as so many people use the short cut across the grass in any case.
 - Noted that a new manager, Paul Torres, had been appointed by Tesco. HMS would try to arrange a meeting for Friday 9 October. RHC and BJ hoped to attend.
- 5 Stanton Farm: dangerous (and contrary to planning permission condition) entrance from A10 (PC5/6-09). The clerk had asked for the Enforcement Officer's update. (See DC report below).
- 6 1-5 Knights Way Road: no money to repair this road not a priority. (See DC report below).

South Cambs Parish Forum (PC5/7-09) — meeting Wednesday, 23rd September 2009 at 10.00am South Cambs District Council, Council Chamber, Cambourne. The clerk, assistant, RHC and RLEW hoped to attend.

Mobile phone (PC6/7-09) – purchase to be arranged.

<u>South Cambridgeshire Crime and Disorder Partnership</u> - information event about anti-social behaviour at South Cambs Hall on Tuesday 29 September at 7pm and finishing at 8.30pm.

SLCC Regional Conference – at Chilford Hall Linton Thursday 24 September 10.00am – 3.45pm.

SCDC:

- <u>invite</u> invitation from C Nightingale Chairman SCDC to visit SCDC offices on 26 November. ME hoped to attend.
- <u>open space contributions</u> S106 Agreements: SCDC is trying to improve the process for obtaining the transfer of open spaces and S106 contributions to Parish Councils and is proposing a standard form of indemnity. SCDC requests two PC authorised signatories so that the deeds of indemnity can be prepared and sent out for signature at the relevant time.

<u>CPALC</u> – invitation to Consultation "Rural Cambridgeshire: Ensuring a Vibrant Future" at Bar Hill Wednesday 16 September.

<u>Community Care</u> - Care Network – meeting at Milton Community Centre 8 September 10.00am – 12.30pm. IFM to attend.

7 **Planning** – the minutes of the planning meeting held on 17 August were received and noted.

Appeal – (P7/8-09) - noted that comments in response to application by Turnstone were:

"24/11-08 S/1792/08 <u>Turnstone Estates Ltd</u> erection of 120 bed hotel and restaurant together with associated parking and infrastructure on (52/6-08) land adjacent A14.

"Milton Parish Council strongly objects to this application as the proposed building would have a severe detrimental effect on our village.

Land is in Green Belt. As we have watched Cambridge creep towards us we have consistently resisted any attempt to take this one remaining piece of rural land at the southern approach to the village out of Green Belt. It is the one parcel of land preventing coalescence with the city. This does not meet the criteria for removal from Green Belt status as admitted by the applicant.

Inappropriate. A hotel is an inappropriate building in our village. The Parish Council and residents of Milton do not accept that this location is urban and have always totally opposed any further urbanisation of our village.

We strongly refute the comments made in Section 9.2 and 9.6 of the Visual Impact Assessment. We are in great need of additional pitches for colts football and believe if the land were used for recreation/football it would benefit the village much more than the proposed hotel.

Traffic. A 120 bed hotel with car parking spaces for 93 begs the question "Where will all the cars go if the hotel is over ¾ full?" The roads in Milton are already extremely busy. They will not be able to cope with the extra amount of traffic. There would be an inevitable increased congestion on the A14/A10 interchange.

There would be yet another junction in an area with a number of junctions already.

Quality of Life. This area of Milton has been allowed to grow haphazardly over the years to the mishmash of industrial units that we have now plus a superstore with its own problems of traffic. Another rectangular building will just compound what is an unsightly entrance to the village. Compare this with the northern approach to Milton to see how we have got it wrong previously. It is interesting to note that the recently completed Parish Plan survey highlights villagers' concerns about this approach to the village.

Visual impact. A large building of the type proposed will have an adverse visual impact on our village."

Copy letter received from resident opposed to application.

HMS would inform Council of appeal date.

Gypsy & Traveller Community Strategy (P8/8-09)

Consultation period runs until 21 October 2009. To be discussed at October meeting.

Document can be found at: http://www.scambs.gov.uk/documents/retrieve.htm?pk document=908175

Gypsy & Traveller site consultation (P9/8-09)

SCDC Officer Keith Miles unavailable to attend. To be discussed at October meeting.

Decisions received:

Napp Pharmaceutical Holdings Ltd 194,196, 198 Science Park – generator and enclosure (PC7/7-09) (retrospective application) - **approved**. **Landscaping conditions**.

<u>Prof R Lemon</u> 16 Butt Lane (PC7/7-09) – erection of chimney - **approved**.

New applications:

S/1018/09 Mr & Mrs I McGuinness 10 Goding Way (P/6/8-09) – single storey rear extension and first floor balcony – amendment – insertion of 1.7m side screens. **For information only**.

S/1146/09 <u>Village Vets</u> Maple Cottage 26 Cambridge Road – single storey infill extension with pitched roof and conversion of existing double garage to provide additional space for veterinary practice – **no recommendation**.

demolition and recommendation.

S/1154/09 Mrs S Lee 6 Sunningdale Park Chesterton Fen (P5/8-09) – part alterations of existing unauthorised building to provide a dayroom - **no**

S/1196/09 Mr Swegen and Ms Bennett 45 Butt Lane – two storey extension – no recommendation.

S/1215/09 Mr Barry Tibone 81 Coles Road – single storey extensions to domestic dwelling – consisting of family room and entrance porch / shower room extension – no recommendation. Noted that the hedge on the boundary between 81 and 83 Coles Road would need to be removed. Neighbours' concerns supported.

C/11/17/072/14 Mrs E Taylor 2 Walnut Close – trimming of walnut tree at 1 Walnut Close overhanging conservatory at 2 Walnut Close – **no comments**.

9 Land Group update (PC8/7-09)

Landbeach Road: Expiration of planning permission at Landbeach Road in December 2009: SCDC had said it was no longer possible to renew an application by letter and fee alone. Even if an application is submitted prior to the date the decision expires, a completely new application (inc. all supporting plants and documentation) would be required. The clerk's office would prepare new application for Council to consider at October meeting.

Action: clerk's office

Alternatively should Council consider asking County Council for permission to start work now on site? If Council proceeded with the Landbeach Road site it was expected that the adult football club would move there and the colts would play at The Sycamores.

Former EDF Site: future management of the sports facilities on site would possibly include involvement of Milton Community Centre.

Land Group had met three times and minutes were received and noted. Iwan Jones, URV, had informed the assistant clerk that he expected the S106 Agreement to be engrossed on Friday 11 September although Council's requirements had not been met. HMS would find out exact position from Gary Duthie, solicitor SCDC.

Action: HMS

It was AGREED at 10.13pm [Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960] to exclude members of the public to this item as publicity would prejudice the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business.

The meeting re-opened at 10.22pm.

10 Finance - the minutes of the Finance & Staffing committee meeting held on 27 July 09 were received and noted Internal Audit report (FS9/7-09) - both Council and the Finance and Staffing Committee had now considered the internal auditor's report in full. The clerk had sent a detailed letter in response to the internal auditor's comments.

11 Parish Plan update

<u>Communications Group and Web Site Policy</u> (PC5/7-09) – noted that a new web site had been set up "Milton.org.uk" - not be confused with the Parish Council web site "Miltonvillage.org.uk". The Parish Council had complete control of the content to be posted on its web site. The PC web site would be factual and not express opinions.

PSB reported on the recent Communications Group meeting:

Parish Council Notice board; suggestions for a link to Milton Chat; Advertising Policy; Home Page – review. It was suggested that the Communications Group should bring more concrete proposals to Council.

It was AGREED

that the Communications Group should look into the web design and improvements that need to be made and its content and look at the relationship with the milton.org.uk web site.

Environmental Group

The following issues were discussed at a recent meeting:

<u>Baits Bite Lock project</u> - the landowner was keen to support this project. HMS had contacted Gareth Guest, the bridge officer at CCC as building works would take place near the 'dilapidated' footbridge. More research was needed. There would be an article published in the Village View. Lottery money had not yet been received.

<u>Energy monitors</u>; <u>Carbon Conversation Workshops</u>; <u>Food share project</u> - food from allotment holders was being distributed to the Children's Hospice, Edmund House and Jimmy's Night Shelter.

A litter pick was planned for Saturday 12 September.

Transport Group – hoped to meet soon.

12 Milton Community Centre [MCC] update

Anti-social behaviour had occurred recently – vandalism, graffiti and meter cupboard at bowls pavilion broken. Invitations to tender for improvement works at MCC had been sent out.

14 District Councillors' reports

<u>Knights Way</u>: (see clerk's report above) the usual channels have failed to get this road improved. Hazel and Michael are working with Jo Snaith who is going to raise this at question time at the County Council.

Home-link (PC11/7-09): the district councillors no longer get the magazine in their pigeon holes - but we will pick it up at SCDC offices and bring a copy back when we can.

<u>A14 bridge</u> - Hazel has emailed Rob Barron at the Highways Agency Area 8 (in charge of maintaining the Jane Coston Bridge). He reported that the graffiti was due to be cleaned off in August (NOTE: still there), and that the lights were to be replaced in late September. The CCTV is installed now.

Stanton Farm: a Planning Contravention Notice had been served on the owners. They have to return a questionnaire within 21 days, and can face a fine. It turns out that they are operating the nursery without planning permission. Entry to the nursery was restricted to the Landbeach Road entrance in the previous personal planning permission. Chairman's Delegation meetings (P10/7-09): it is likely that they will stay, but may be opened to the public to allow more transparency in the decision making process.

15 Bills for Payment and Money Received

CONFIRMED payment of cheques 100101 – 100110 **AGREED** payment of cheques 100111 - 100117

16 Correspondence

SCDC South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework

Adoption of Supplementary Planning Documents

SCDC adopted the following Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD), which expand upon policy policies in adopted Development Plan Documents, on 2 July 2009: Biodiversity; Listed Buildings: Works to or affecting the setting of.

CCC Guided Bus - Contractor's update

Busway contractors BAM Nuttall have advised Cambridgeshire County Council that they expect to hand over the track between St Ives and Cambridge at the end of

October.

Next Local Liaison Forum for the Oakington to Cambridge section will take place in the Family Wing, Meadows Community Centre on Thursday 10 September 7pm.

John Sargeant

Rights of Way Officer CCC Improvement works expected to take place in the autumn/winter. It is HGF (Housing

Growth Fund) funded and forms part of our programme to improve access to the

countryside. (County Councillor's report above refers).

Following improvement works to the southern end of Mere Way (both sides of the A14 and adjacent to Blackwells Travellers' Camp) which were completed earlier this year, we are now planning Phase 2 to take in the northern section from Butt Lane (Sun Close Farm) to Oldfield Farm – The main works include strengthening the TRO gates across the byway, hardening the surface adjacent to Sun Close Farm where there is a great deal of farm traffic, cutting down some trees that have encroached onto the

byway, gapping up the hedges with native hedge species, and signage.

ACRE AGM 29 September 5.30pm.

Standards Committee Newsletter – Kathy English (member of MCC Committee) is new chairman.

17 Dates of Next Meetings

Planning - 21 September Maintenance - 28 September Council - 5 October

18 Items and Reports for October agenda

Double yellow lines; Milton to Impington cycle route; Actions following village tour; Community Engagement Strategy; Gypsy and Traveller Strategy

The meeting ended at 11.10pm.
Signed
Date